TOWN OF STONY POINT
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS
Minutes of April 15, 2021



PRESENT:						ALSO PRESENT:
Mr. Keegan						Dave MacCartney, Attorney
Mr. Anginoli (absent)					John Hager, Building Inspector
Mr. Lynch 						
Mr. Strieter  
Mr. Gazzola  
Ms. Davis 
 
Chairman Wright 

Stony Point Zoning Board of Appeals meeting which was held on April 15, at 7:00 PM was conducted via Zoom video conferencing online at https://us02web.zoom.us/j/89357871399?pwd=N1h6bU9uMTQvdjRxWmlxbjlQWEE2UT09
and hosted by Dave MacCartney, Esq., Attorney for the Zoning Board of Appeals.  The meeting was also accessible by telephone at 1-929-205-6099 US; webinar ID:  893 5787 1399.

Chairman Wright:  Good evening.  Welcome to the Stony Point Zoning Board of Appeals.  I call this meeting of April 15, 2021, to order.  Please rise for the Pledge of Allegiance.

The Pledge of Allegiance was recited, and roll call taken. 

Chairman Wright:  First item on the agenda is the request of Daniel J. Madden.

Request of Daniel J. Madden - App. #21-06 

A variance from the requirements of Chapter 215, Article XIV, Section 215-95 – No enlargement shall be made in a building occupied by a non-conforming use at 20 Brooks Drive, Stony Point, New York, for a residential addition – 2nd floor and deck.

Section:  20.06          Block:  2          Lot:  7            Zone:  R1

Chairman Wright:  A request came in from Mr. Stoll requesting that the matter be adjourned to the next meeting.

***MOTION:  Mr. Lynch made a motion to adjourn Application #21-06 until the next meeting, May 20, 2021, seconded by Ms. Davis.  All in favor; the motion was carried.

Chairman Wright:  The next item…I’ll recognize Todd Strieter for the purpose of a motion for the request of Peter Anastos and Eileen Sackman.

Request of Peter Anastos and Eileen Sackman - App. #20-05 

An appeal from the Building Inspector’s denial of a proposed kiln per Chapter 215, Article IV, Section 12-A-E – Proposed kiln not an accessory use located at 55 Lowland Hill Road, Stony Point, New York.

Section:  20.07          Block:  3          Lot:  15          Zone:  


***MOTION:  Mr. Strieter offered the following resolution; seconded by Mr. Lynch.

In the Matter of Application #20-05 of Peter C. Anastos and Eileen Sackman, for an appeal of the determination of the Town of Stony Point Building Inspector dated August 12, 2020, that the applicants’ proposed outdoor wood burning ceramic kiln is not an Accessory Use under Chapter 215, Article IV, Section 12-A-E of the Town of Stony Point Zoning Code, on property located at 55 Lowland Hill Road, Stony Point, New York, designated on the Tax Map as Section 20.07, Block 3, Lot 15 in the R1 Zoning District.
	Additionally, members of the Zoning Board of Appeals personally visited the applicant’s property and viewed it and the neighboring properties on or about October 25, 2020.
	WHEREAS, this is a Type II Action pursuant to the New York State Environmental Quality Review Act; and
	WHEREAS, a public hearing was properly noticed and opened on November 5, 2020, was duly conducted over the course of several meetings, and was ultimately closed on March 18, 2021, during all of which the Board heard and accepted abundant testimony and documentary evidence; and 
	WHEREAS, all the evidence and testimony was carefully considered, and the Zoning Board of Appeals has made the following findings of fact and conclusions:
	The applicant, Ms. Sackman, is a ceramic artist residing at the subject premises.  The applicants applied to the Stony Point Building Department for a building permit to allow the construction, maintenance, and use of an outdoor, wood-burning ceramic pottery kiln.  The applicants have prepared and submitted professionally signed and sealed plans for the construction of the subject kiln on the left rear side of their residential property.  It is a custom design and build project.
The kiln is substantial in size. It is 12 feet long and 4½ feet wide, with a 15 foot high chimney.  It will be housed in a shed measuring 14 feet wide by 18 feet long, by 10.6 feet high.  The applicant testified that because of the large size, it would take a few months to make enough pottery work to fill the kiln, and so it would generally be fired approximately four times a year.  When used, the kiln is loaded and stacked with all the clay pieces that have been gathered.  It is then closed, but with an opening in the front for wood to be added and lit.  A temperature of approximately 2,250 degrees is then slowly achieved.  The superheated ash from the wood flows through the kiln and onto the pottery, where it eventually starts to melt the pottery and turn it into glass, which fuses to the surface of the clay.  The process entails provoking and sustaining an ongoing chemical reaction affecting the pottery with the gases inside the kiln, which are then ultimately released through the chimney, where there might also be the tip of a flame protruding from the top.  The process takes approximately three to four days and during that entire time the kiln is lit and firing. Two people would attend to it for all of the three or four days, and it would be manned in 12 hour shifts.  The owners would supervise that firing.  It requires three or four chords of wood for each firing.
As an artist, the applicant displays her pottery work in galleries where they are sold.  The applicants would receive money from the sale of the pottery they intend to make with the proposed kiln on this residential property, although they are not expecting to turn a profit.   The applicants also stated their intent to allow their artist friends and colleagues to travel to their home to use the proposed kiln as well (as they currently do with other peoples’ kilns), and each time the kiln would be fired, there would be a total of 4 to 6 people participating in the firing. 
The applicants identified nine other residential properties in New York where wood kilns existed, although they did not specific the size of type of use.  They also identified three universities with similar kilns.  They also provided a map of scattered wood kilns in the United States. There are no known generally accepted standards or codes applicable to the safe construction and operation of this type of kiln.  The Town Code Enforcement Officer conducted research in that regard, and reached out to various municipal locations where the applicants said such kilns existed.  None of those municipalities were aware of the existence of such kilns in their jurisdiction and could point to no safety rules or regulations against which the construction of this kiln could be measured.  Accordingly, although these kilns do exist elsewhere, they are not common.
	As stated above, the subject property is in a residential zone, in which certain accessory uses are permitted.
Chapter 215, Article II, §215-5 defines “Accessory” and “Accessory Use” as follows, relevant part:
ACCESSORY The term applied to a building, structure or use which is clearly incidental or subordinate to, and customarily in connection with, the principal building, structure or use and which is located on the same lot with a principal building, structure, or use. …
ACCESSORY USE  A use customarily incidental and subordinate to the primary use on a lot, whether such “accessory use” is conducted in a principal or accessory building or on the lot.
The Building Inspector has determined that the subject proposed kiln does not meet the definition of an Accessory Use.  
The applicants have argued that the Table of General Use Requirements for Residential Districts includes the following as acceptable Accessory Uses: “greenhouses, barns, silos, pool sheds, garages, tennis courts, swimming pools, and other similar structures.”  The applicants argue that their proposed kiln is similar to those listed structures and so is a permissible Accessory Use.
Unlike an area variance, a balancing test does not apply to the task before this Board. Board cannot take into account, as it would for an area variance, the benefit to the applicant if the variance is granted weighed against the detriment to the health, safety, and welfare of the community. The desirability of a kiln of the type and kind proposed by the applicants here is, unfortunately, just not an issue before the Board at all. The simple issue before the Board is whether this kiln constitutes a permissible Accessory Use in a Residential District, as defined in this Town’s Zoning Code.
Unfortunately for the applicants, our Town Code is clear and unambiguous in that regard and the Board is constrained to interpret the Code pursuant to the plain meaning of the words contained therein.
Pursuant to the testimony, the Board finds that a kiln of the size, type, and use proposed here is not customarily incidental or subordinate to, or customarily used in connection with, a single family home.  Here, the applicants are proposing a very large structure that in no way resembles the other examples of permissible Accessory Uses set forth in the Code. Firing a kiln 

of this type at those temperatures, for days on end while it is manned around the clock by two people, is not, in this Board’s view, similar to the types of greenhouses, barns, silos, tool sheds, garages, tennis courts, or swimming pools that are customarily used in connection with single family homes.  There are relatively few of these types of substantial kilns in the state, and for that matter the whole country.   They cannot be said to be customarily used in connection with a residential use in any normal sense of that terminology.
Additionally, only a handful of other municipalities in New York, such as the Town of Corinth (See Corinth Code Sec. 89-36(15) and the City of Kingston  (see City code Sec. 425-26(k)) even deal with kilns at all in their Codes.  Those two municipalities’ treatment of kilns is instructive here.  They have defined home occupations to include home crafts, including ceramics with a kiln, but only for kilns up to six cubic feet.  The kiln here cannot remotely be considered to be for home crafts as it is monumentally larger than six cubic feet and is quite sophisticated.
Additionally, the applicants confirmed that, although they say they do not expect to turn a profit, they will in fact be selling the pottery they create in this kiln through art galleries, for money, and will be permitting others to drive from potentially far off places to their property to use their kiln for those artists’ endeavors as well.  The applicants’ kiln will basically be a destination of sorts for certain other artists, the way other artists’ kilns have become a destination presently for the applicants to use to create their artwork for sale and display in art galleries.   Whether or not the applicants’ turn a profit, the use of the kiln to create pottery that is sold to the public is one of several factors that leads this Board to hold that this is not an Accessory Use here as defined in our Code. 
In summary, while a kiln of this type and kind might be considered a desirable or positive use in the Town, this Board’s jurisdiction constrains us simply to the words of the existing Code, and we find that it does not meet the plain definition of Accessory Use here.  
 	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the determination of the Building Inspector dated April 15, 2021 is hereby affirmed in all respects.
Upon roll call, the vote was as follows:  Mr. Keegan, yes; Mr. Anginoli, absent; Mr. Lynch, yes; Mr. Strieter, yes; Mr. Gazzola, yes; Ms. Davis, yes; and Chairman Wright, yes.
Chairman Wright:  The next item is the request of Albert Perini.
Request of Albert Perini – App. #21-02 

A variance from the requirements of Chapter 215, Article VI, Section 24C – to permit the construction, maintenance and use of a fence over 4 feet in the front yard (corner lot – two fronts) at 5 Frado Court, Stony Point, New York.  

Section:  15.02          Block:  3          Lot:  24          Zone:  R1

Chairman Wright:  I will recognize Mr. Lynch for the purposes of a motion.

***MOTION:  Mr. Lynch offered the following resolution; seconded by Mr. Keegan.

In the Matter of Application #21-02 of Albert Perini for a variance from the requirements of Chapter 215, Article VI, Section 24C of the Town of Stony Point Code to permit the construction, maintenance and use of a fence over 4 feet in the front yard (corner lot – two fronts) on property located at 5 Frado Court, Stony Point, New York designated on the Tax Map as Section 15.02, Block 3, Lot 24 in the R1 Zoning District.

WHEREAS, the applicant represented himself, and the following documents were placed into the record and duly considered:  
Application with all submitted attachments including a letter from Stony Point Building Inspector John Hager dated 1/13/21; 3/8/21 letter from the State of New York DOT; letter dated 3/18/21 form Rockland County Department of Planning; and any and all documentation submitted at the public hearing.
Additionally, members of the Zoning Board of Appeals personally visited the applicant’s property and viewed it and the neighboring properties on or about March 14, 2021.
	WHEREAS, this is a Type II Action pursuant to the New York State Environmental Quality Review Act; and
	WHEREAS, a public hearing was held on March 18, 2021 and the testimony of the following persons was duly considered: Applicant; and 
	WHEREAS, all the evidence and testimony was carefully considered, and the Zoning Board of Appeals has made the following findings of fact and conclusions:
	The applicant is the owner of the subject parcel which is presently improved with a single family home.    The property is located on the corner of Frado Court and Route 9W.  The house faces Frado Court, but because it is a Corner Lot as defined in the Code, the property technically has two Front Yards and must comply with the front yard setbacks and other requirements on both frontages.
The applicant has an existing 4 foot high chain-link fence enclosing what would commonly be considered the side and rear yard of the property, where this not a corner lot.  The applicant wishes to replace this existing fence with a 6 foot high white vinyl fence.  The applicant seeks the 6 foot high vinyl fence to mitigate the noise and light pollution, as well as other nuisances and undesirable side effects associated with the proximity of Route 9W, its traffic, and the strip mall across the street.   The applicant also has a dog which can easily leap the 4 foot high fence, and has done so in the past thereby endangering the dog and the traffic on Route 9W.  
The section of the existing fence parallel to Route 9W is 15 feet from the property line and this is considered a front yard since this is a Corner Lot.  Therefore, the fence in that location must comply with the front yard requirements of the Code, which limits the permissible fence height to 4 feet.  
	Based on a site visit, the Board is fully satisfied that the proposed replacement fence will not impede any vehicular or pedestrian site lines.  There will be no danger or negative impact.  
Per the GML review, County Planning advised only that State DOT should review it and any required permits be obtained.  State DOT did perform a review and stated it had no objection and that no permits were required.  
There were no objections to the relief sought from any neighbor or member of the public.  
WHEREAS, this Board has examined the written documentation and reviewed the testimony with respect to the applicant’s request for a variance, and, pursuant to the requirements of section 267-b.3 of the Town Law, hereby finds that on the conditions stated herein, the benefit to the applicant if the variance is granted outweighs any detriment to the health, safety and welfare of the neighborhood or community by such a grant, and has made the following findings and conclusions in that regard:
(1) There is no evidence presented that the proposed variance would produce any undesirable change in the character of the neighborhood or a detriment to any nearby properties. 
(2) There is no evidence presented to this Board that the benefits sought could be achieved through any other feasible means.  
(3)  The variance sought is not substantial, particularly given the 15 foot distance from the property line closest to Route 9W and the absence of any issue with site lines. 
(4) There is no evidence before this Board of any adverse effect or impact on the physical or environmental conditions in the neighborhood or district.
  (5) The alleged difficulty was self-created.
 	NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the application for variance(s) is hereby approved on the following conditions:
1. The applicant shall comply substantially with the plans submitted.  The fence location and height shall not be expanded or raised beyond that for which the relief herein is sought and granted.  The new fence shall not be installed or moved closer to the road(s) or any property line than the existing fence.
2. The applicant shall comply with all other applicable laws, rules, codes, and regulations. 

The matter is remanded to the Building Inspector for further consideration in compliance with the terms and conditions hereof.
Upon roll call, the vote was as follows:  Mr. Keegan, yes; Mr. Anginoli, absent; Mr. Lynch, yes; Mr. Strieter, yes; Mr. Gazzola, yes; Ms. Davis, yes; and Chairman Wright, yes.
Chairman Wright:  The next item on the agenda is a Public Hearing for the request of Pierre and Marybeth Chaubard.
Request of Pierre and Marybeth Chaubard  – App. #21-04 

A variance from the requirements of Chapter 215, Article XIV, Section 94D(e) – The maximum building height shall be 25 feet, for 6 Roosevelt Place, Stony Point, New York, for residential alterations.  

Section:  15.19          Block:  3          Lot:  14          Zone:  R-1 

Chairman Wright:  I will take a motion to open the Public Hearing.
***MOTION:  Mr. Keegan made a motion to open the Public Hearing; seconded by Mr. Lynch.  All in favor; the motion was carried.
Chairman Wright:  Is a representative or the applicant present?  

	Benjamin Leopold – applicant and Pierre Chaubard’s realtor and Pierre is on the call as well
	
Please identify yourself and I will just ask you to swear that the testimony you are about to give is truthful.  Can you both identify yourselves – names and addresses and then swear that the testimony you give is truthful.  

	Benjamin Leopold – Weld Realty, Pierre Chaubard’s realtor
	14 Maple Street
	Nyack, New York  10960

“I swear that the testimony I give will be the truth.”


Chairman Wright:  Mr. Chaubard…

	Pierre Chaubard
	7 Cedar Hill Avenue
	Nyack, New York

“The testimony will be the truth.”

Chairman Wright:  Thank you both of you.  Now if you could just give us an overview of what you are looking to accomplish and what you need this Board to respond to?

Mr. Leopold:  Sure.  So the existing structure is one story from Roosevelt; the street that it is on.  The property itself has a pretty considerable pitch.  It is on a hill.  We would like to add one level to the house, making it two (2) stories from the front and that will; from the backside of the house, make it appear to be taller than what it would be…what would otherwise be allowed due to the setback from the property line is my understanding.  

So it is an area variance, I believe that we are appealing for.  

Now also I might add that we have gone…we have gone out to the property a couple of times with the express goal of just making sure that what we were doing wasn’t going to impact anybody else on the street’s sightlines or anything and indeed it doesn’t impact anybody’s sight line of the river or of the east facing view.  

We did take some pictures.  I did download them all onto my computer, but I don’t know how I would share them with you today.  Just various advantage points around the house, but from a top view it is very easy to see it’s not…this subject property doesn’t lie between any other house and the river view.  

Chairman Wright:  Okay.  Mr. Chaubard do you have anything to add or are you okay ?

Mr. Chaubard:  No, I think he described it pretty well.  

Chairman Wright:  Okay.  So I will open it up to the Board if you got any questions?

Mr. Lynch:  So you are going to maintain the actual foot base of the house itself and you are just going to go straight up.  Let me ask you this because I was there and I saw and I walked around and everything, but eventually are there going to be porches added on, you think decks off of the back side.  I am just curious because I noticed the pitch and everything on that.  Is that down the line?  Because I know you want to go up.  If you go up, it seems like you are gonna want somebody to step out onto something?

Mr. Chaubard:  From the road, the right side, or the left side there won’t be anything.  From the other side what is really steep I may put a deck on the other side that you won’t be able to see from Roosevelt.  Because the property is really difficult of access and plus I am too close to the property line on the right and the left so I cannot build anything on the right and left because it just a strip of land.  So it will go straight up the existing where it is; just one floor and on the other side, in the future, I may add a deck from the other side, but I cannot because of the situation of the property put any deck on the right or the left on that property on that house.

Mr. Lynch:  Right, because I looked at the plans and I was there and walked around.  I got my own photos, so I appreciate that.

Mr. Chaubard;  Sure.

Mr. Keegan:  I have a question.  We have a letter from a Mr.  Ahmadi.  Do you have this letter?

Mr. Leopold:  No, we don’t.

Mr. Chaubard:  No, we don’t.

Mr. Leopold:  What does it say?

Ms. Kivlehan:  He submitted it to the Board.  He bought it in when he thought you guys were going to be on the agenda last month.  So he submitted it to the Board to be read into the minutes.
Mr. Leopold:  Okay.

Ms. Kivlehan:  That he wasn’t in favor of it.

Mr. MacCartney:  If you like, I can read it quickly.  I believe I Have it in front of me that way the applicant can be fully aware of what it says.

Chairman Wright:  Sure go ahead Mr. MacCartney:  We will recognize you.  

Mr. MacCartney:  It is a letter.  I don’t see a date on the letter; unless I am missing it.  

Chairman Wright:  One other thing Mr. MacCartney, is I don’t see what his…like is he a resident.  I don’t understand what his standing would be on this one other than he is a P.E.  But, go ahead and…

Mr. MacCartney:  I’ll read it and maybe it will become evident; I don’t know.  It looks like it was…maybe it was emailed on March 18, if I am not mistaking, but in any event it says…it is addressed to Chairman Wright regarding the application for the ZBA for 6 Roosevelt Place, Stony Point.

Dear Mr. Wright:

This application for renovation of an old structure at 6 Roosevelt Place, Stony Point, New York, should be denied entirely.

Existing property is located between Roosevelt Place and Hoover Place on a steep slope.  The property width is 50 feet, and the depth is 145 feet one side and other side 168 feet.

Per Rockland County Topo Map which the applicant architect has not shown in his drawing, the slope from Roosevelt Place (west) to Hoover Place is 34% for 70 +/- feet.

Reason for denial:

1. Any renovation consisting more than 50% the grandfather rule “existing structures non-conforming” must be upgraded to the current applicable zoning.
2. The applicant architect does not show the “Bulk Table” for R-1 to avoid setback as well as height regulations.
3. The applicant architect does not show the Floor Ratio to net area.
4. The applicant architect does not show the net land use for calculation of F.A.R. considering the “STEEP SLOPE” regulation.  As it is the FAR exceeds R-1 regulation.  By adding additional floor, F.A.R. increases.
5. The applicant architect does not show the existing Front, Rear, and sides.
6. By adding additional floor, the front (at Roosevelt Place) has two floors, and the rear will be FOUR level.  The surrounding area are one and two floor dwelling, which a four-level dwelling is out of the characteristic of the area.
7. Fire Department does not have apparatus to reach the back of the building from Hoover Place in case of fire.
8. If they are using the field stone foundation with non-conforming setbacks, then why they are not using the height and F.A.R.?
9. Structure stability of the existing field stone foundation should be provided if used.
10. The applicant architect does not show the cross-sections from Roosevelt Place to Hoover Place (west to east).  Also, cross-section from north to south with respect to the exact ground elevation is required per “BUILDING CODE of NEW YORK STATE” Building and Fire and Safety Code.

I can be reached at 845-548-3080.

Respectfully,

Raymond Ahmadi, PhD, PE

The letter is from RA Associates letterhead as Consulting Engineer, Planner, New York City Special Inspector, and the address looks like it is 227 South Mountain Road, New City, New York on top of the letterhead.  

Ms. Kivlehan:  Mr. Ahmadi owns 7 Roosevelt Place…well it’s a Reza Ahmadi owns 7 Roosevelt Place and Ray Ahmadi owns 72 North Liberty Drive, which are surrounding property owners to the house that is in question.  

Mr. Leopold:  I think most of them are multi-family rentals.

Ms. Kivlehan:  That I couldn’t tell you.

Mr. Leopold; Well I mean I am pretty sure because when sent out all of the hearing notices there were like at least three (3) or four (4) different names at those surrounding properties.  So , I mean, I don’t know the bulk table was provided.  A lot of the other things that he referenced were not requested and frankly I don’t…I’m not familiar with the situation where we would be expected to provide that proactively.  Certainly, upon request it would be no problem, but that is going to be something that’s going to incur an additional cost for my client with the architect and that’s fine, but it wasn’t requested so that would…any way the bulk table was there.  

In reference to the multi-story buildings…it’s a two-story…we are proposing adding one story to an existing single story residence.  From the back of the building it is not four stories high, there is a basement under that, there is some old sort of infrastructure; but there is a basement.  There is one floor above that currently so…This Ahmadi, I don’t believe he lives there at the location whether that maters or not, but I am pretty sure I sent a letter to him at his mailing address in New City, so…It seems to me that they probably are just…we’re hoping to buy the land instead of us buying it and incorporate it into their package on the street and that didn’t work out and he seems to be irritated  by it.

But, we are building in the existing footprint and I am not sure how else to respond to that list of…

Mr. Chaubard: He mentions something about the structure.  The architect is leaving the existing structure, but building a new structure on the inside of the existing one; not using the existing structure to build another floor.

Mr. Leopold:  That is correct.

Mr. Chaubard:  Just to make sure that there is no other load on the existing structure who is quite old because the architect wanted to make sure that he is liable for that building.  He wanted to make sure it is built properly.  

Chairman Wright:  Just so that we stay within the scope of this, and Mr. MacCartney correct me if I am wrong here, what we’ve been asked with…and I assume if there are issues with this structure that the Building Inspector would address those, but our issue is really can  you go higher than 25 feet.  Does that sound right, Mr. MacCartney or am I missing something?

Mr. MacCartney:  Yes, you have…structure issues are really not before the Board.  We are not talking about whether he…you are not issuing a Building Permit or Certificate of Occupancy.  You are being asked to determine whether the criteria for the area variance had been met.  There is obviously a little bit of a “shot gun” approach to the letter.  He has 10 items and as I read them I would like to hear or see a response to each.  One of them that does echo, however, the County Department of Planning letter that we did get there GML review letter dated March 18, as well and the first two (2) comments are “pro forma” that a review should be completed by the Department of Health and Department of Highway.  The third one is getting to some of the same issues that Mr. Ahmadi is getting at.  

Has the applicant seen the County Planning letter?

Mr. Leopold:  No, I have not.

Mr. MacCartney:  So the County Planning letter #3 it says:

“That the proposed addition will increase the floor area of the structure and, therefore, increase the floor area ratio of the property.  The site plan must be amended to include an updated bulk table with all existing and proposed bulk measurements.  In addition, the property is characterized by areas of steep slopes.  As per Section 215-16A of the Town’s regulations, a net lot area calculation must be provided and applied to the floor area ratio calculation.  If any additional variances are required, a new application must be submitted to the County for review and a new public hearing notice must be issued.”


And the remaining two (2) comments are “pro forma” standard requirements of County Planning.  
There is some overlap that I see between what Mr. Ahmadi’s letter is saying and what the Department of Planning is saying here which is that it sort of – hmm are there any more variances here that are necessary, and that’s an issue that is…that it is an interesting one in that if…the suggestion in Mr. Ahmadi’s letter that this is pre-existing non-conforming as to bulk and if it is than it would be…you would need more variances because he is expanding….potentially he needs more variances because he is enlarging the structure, maybe, maybe not, but I think the point of the County Planning letter is well taken in this particular instance and I don’t see a bulk table so it is hard for the Board to say whether there are any other variances that are actually required here.  Not that the Board should go out and hunting variances, because the issues been raised by County Planning it might not be a bad idea to have the applicant take the time to keep the Public Hearing open and have the applicant address the County Planning comments and take the time maybe to address each one of Mr. Ahmadi’s comments so the Board can be better informed as to what is the position of the applicant on each of these and it can kind of weigh the issues and decide A.)  can we act, can we not act, do we need an amended application and if we need an amended application then it would probably behoove the applicant to amend it and include those and re-notice.  

Maybe he doesn’t have to, but these are things that as I am looking at both letters there are potential issues atleast that need to be addressed.

Mr. Chaubard:  Yes, we can definitely take care of that.  The bulk, this mean the increase in square footage on the house.  That’s what the bulk is.  

Now about the situation of the house compared to the land is not being changed because we go up.  We are not building an addition on the right, left, front or back.  That’s where you need to variance because you are building an addition on the side of the house somewhere.  But, we are not adding anything.  We are not adding a deck or anything.  We are just building up one (1) floor.

The only thing we need the variance about the height of the building, but from the street the height of the building, the two (2) floor will be under 25 feet.  It’s just on the other side because of the slope of the property it will look one (1) floor higher from the other side, but from the street, from Roosevelt, it would look 25 feet.  That’s what it would look from the side; from the street itself.  

So, I dealt before with the architectural plan and the bulk meaning the addition of square footage on the property what is separate issue than the property line and the position of the house who haven’t changed…actually my regular house in Nyack I had to add a variance even though I didn’t change anything I just turned the attic into a living space.  They look at the footprint of my house was 4 feet from the property line, so I needed like a variance even though the structure of the house didn’t change, and I passed because I didn’t build another floor and just turned the attic into a living space and add a couple of windows.  That’s about it.  

So we can take care of those issues with the architect for the bulk of the house and how much bigger the house will be to the existing floor.  

Now, about the position of the house to the property line I mean we can definitely supply with that information from the architect and that we didn’t move the house and it is exactly where it would stand at this time.

Chairman Wright:  Why don’t we take what Mr. MacCartney had advised and that is we will get you Mr. Ahmadi’s letter and you can respond to his points and we will get you the County letter and particularly look at #3 under recommended followed modifications and what we will do is when you bring them back to us and we will bring it up at the next meeting.  At the next meeting we will continue the Public Hearing here.  

Is that suitable?

Mr. Chaubard:  Sure, we can take care of that.  

Mr. MacCartney:  Just for clarity if I could, just for clarity.  The bulk table was not just relevant to…are you expanding outward from the footprint.  A bulk table is all the…it’s a standard table that you are going to see on a survey that’s going to show you all the Zoning requirements.  Where are you in terms of front yard setback, rear yard setback and particularly to compute out the floor area ratio taking into account the steep slopes and the required formulas?

The Board is going to want to see that and want to see your position as to whether any additional variances are requested or required or not.  

So we can address those comments by County Planning because the Board has to address those comments directly one way or another.  

Mr. Leopold:  Okay, so how will we be in receipt of both the County letter and the letter from Mr. Ahmadi?

Mr. MacCartney:   Kathy, can you get that to the applicant directly by email or otherwise?

Ms. Kivlehan:  Yes, I can.  I also want to let you know that John, the Building Inspector, John Hager, wrote up a bulk table.  He did write up one.  I did…I think I sent it with the application.  Did you see that in what I sent a copy of the application?  

Mr. Hager:  It’s a handwritten form.

Ms. Kivlehan:  It’s a handwritten form.

Chairman Wright:  I see it.  I got it.

Mr. MacCartney:  I did not see that.

Mr. Hager:  Are there any other public comments before I start…I don’t want to interrupt any other comments from the public.  

Chairman Wright:  Are there any other questions?  Anybody else from the public have any input?

	(no response)

Chairman Wright:  Okay, we will let the Building Inspector speak then.

Mr. Hager:  So one thing I think that needs to be clarified is this lot is a non-conforming lot.  Obviously, it was built before Codes were in effect.  When this occurs, we have to use a different section of the Code.  So in this bulk table that I put up here you will notice about the 3rd line down from the top, under non-conforming I answered “yes”.  If yes, is the width less than 100 feet subject to Section 215.94 D.  I marked “yes”.  What that does is that it makes it, so we work out of the text of the Code rather than the table.  So this table that I wrote out here is based on the requirements in that 215.94 D.  That happens to be where the parameter for 25 foot height is established.  

Most of the rest of this use, this H-1 use in the R-1 District only limits you to a 3500 foot height.  Which the project needs  So it is kind of an odd scenario that in one way it helps going to that Section 215.94 D; it gets you out of some of the requirements including the floor area ratio, but it also prescribes a 10 foot lower height limit.  So you don’t need the whole 10 foot you are only looking for 3.1 feet.

In my analysis for this application that was the only variance required.  As you see, I tried to cover the bases here of each one.  So that it is worthy of nothing I believe that if this was a larger lot the applicant could go 35 feet without any variance required.  Since it is an older lot, non-conforming, we need to go to 215.94 D and that prescribes a 25 foot height.  So it is a little bit of an interesting scenario.  

Chairman Wright:  Kathy, would you be able to provide them with this; if they don’t have it already, with the Building Inspector’s bulk table just so he has it for reference, too?

Ms. Kivlehan:  Sure.  No problem.  When he comes…Benjamin are you going to come in tomorrow or do you want me to mail it to you.  What would you like me to do?

Mr. Leopold:  Kathy, can you email it to me?  

Ms. Kivlehan:  Yes, I can.

Mr. Leopold:  That would be best.

Ms. Kivlehan:  Okay, I will email the bulk table, the letter from the County, and Ahmadi’s letter.

Mr. Leopold:  Yes, Mr. Ahmadi’s letter, too.  Atleast, then I can get a heads up.  I mean I am blindsided.  I would have had answers for these questions, you guys.

Chairman Wright:  That’s alright.  This is kind of the way it goes.  

Mr. Leopold:  I understand that, but unfortunately with regard to carrying costs and potentially lost gains that are being lost this is now been going on for several months and now it is going to be another month.  So with all due respect, I understand it is the way that the process works, but it’s costing, it’s costing real dollars and quite frankly we are in a County that’s completely short on housing.  We would love to just get this place done.  It’s a shack that has been falling down on a side street for years, and years, and years.  So pardon my frustration, but I do…when…we will do our best to address all the questions that are bought up.

I am assuming that there is no way for us to expedite this at all.

Chairman Wright:  I don’t think so.  I was kind of just…I don’t think there is any way we can expedite it any further than what we can right now.  It is just whatever we can do.

Mr. MacCartney:  If you would, Mr. Leopold, just take a look…I might ask the same question to John – the County Planning is referencing when it comes to that floor area ratio making sure that there is a net lot area calculation taking into account deep slopes.  I don’t know….I do see the bulk table; sorry I missed it before, but is that something that you took into account; John, and if not Mr. Leopold could you take that into account for the applicant in advance of the next meeting?

Mr. Hager:  I think the County has misinterpreted.  I don’t think that they were in-tune to the fact that since this lot is of an older non-conforming, it’s less than 100 feet of frontage that, that the other area of the Code needs to be played into this.  So the County comment mentioned floor area ratio, but you know that’s not considered in our Code once you get into the other section of the Code.  This supersedes the table is the way I interrupt it.  

So I don’t believe the floor area ratio needs to be calculated.  I don’t believe that the…well in my table I mentioned it.  The proposed construction column most of them are no change.  So the floor area ratio I marked “not applicable”, and I think we have LOT coverage has “no change” because the footprint nots changed.  Okay, so the lot coverage isn’t changing; the floor area ratio is changing.  It probably complies anyway.  It’s a 40% requirement even with adding that floor I think they would probably meet the standard, but the standard does not apply the way I interrupt this.

Mr. MacCartney:  What would be helpful to the Board, because County Planning has raised it in this fashion, the Board one way or the other in its decision; let’s say for example it is going to grant the application; no idea if it is or not, but if it is, it would have to deal with this either say that the applicant complies with it or that it is overridden so what might be helpful John, if you have time before the next meeting maybe write out your determination in that regard for the Board’s benefit so that it can use that and address that comment directly.

Chairman Wright;  Wasn’t this on the agenda last month?  I’m not sure why this wasn’t bought up last month.  Did we push this off for some reason?

Mr. Leopold;  We were on the agenda for last month and because it got cancelled and turned into a Zoom meeting I had sent out the wrong notice and we got…and then because of the 10 days prior to the meeting that I had to make the deadline I had missed it by a day by the time I had to send out…

Chairman Wright;  Okay, I understand.  

Mr. Leopold;  I mean it is quite, quite frustrating.  Board, please I think if we could look at this with some perspective the list of complaints, I think, many of them are actually non-applicable because I do think that they misinformed with regard to establishing the actual status of this property as John bought up.

Mr. MacCartney:  At the end of the day, just to focus the Board, aside from this letter…putting aside the issues raised in the letter, the applicant on its faith is asking for a variance to your point I think Mr. Leopold it’s a 3.1 foot height variance; is that right, so the height permitted is 25 feet per John Hager and the back, it’s measured on an average and because of the deep slope in the back, front to back, the average comes out higher. 

Do I have it right?
Mr. Leopold:  Yes, that is correct.  

Mr. Hager:  Keep in mind if it were a flatter lot, as the applicant had mentioned from the street front the house does not appear to be larger than 2 stories, but since it has so much slope on the lot the back of the house is higher and then that kicks the average up when you calculate the average roof height.  The architect put that at 28.1 foot average foot roof height which exceeds the 25.  The 25 is required in that Section 215.94 D for these smaller non-conforming lots.  

If it were a conforming lot in that district with that use, we wouldn’t be here.  It would be at 35 foot height and they would comply.  So it’s kind of a “catch 22”.  On one hand it’s provision in the Code allows these smaller lots and on the other hand it restricts it to a little bit lower height.  Although, in this case the slope of the land is really what’s dictating that height gets calculated like that.

Mr. MacCartney:  My larger point is, Mr. Leopold and Mr. Chaubard…look the delays are what they are.  It was a procedural matter with the zoom and all that and it is unfortunate that, that notice went out late, but I do think that the Board now understands I think, as the nature of the application these issues do have to be addressed directly so if you could come back next time with a direct…you directly addressing each of the items, satisfy the Board.  From your standpoint I assume you are going to say that these are all unrelated.  We hear from Mr. Hager in that regard and of the issues are narrowed to the 28.1 versus the 25 feet then I would imagine, and I want to speak for the Board, barring any other unforeseen circumstances that the Board would have what it would need next meeting.  

Chairman Wright:  I agree.  Any other questions?

Mr. Lynch:  Good for now.

Mr. Hager:  As to having to draft a resolution available at the next meeting in case this gets resolved?

Mr. Chaubard:  I have a question.  Would it be easier for me to build next to the house and not build up; build on the side.  But, I still need the variance because I would be close to the property line.  Would it be easier to be close to the property line with a variance instead to be up another floor as a possibility?  While we will have to redo all the blueprints again, but…

Chairman Wright:  Let me…my understanding so far, and I will just kind of see what the Board is thinking, is at this point, let’s assume everything else…you respond to all these pieces that everybody wants a response to the net of it is you need about a 3 foot 1 inch variance for height…I will just panel the Board, does anybody see significant push back on this one or anybody have any thoughts?  I don’t want an answer now, I’m just looking like if you have a gut like this is no good or I need to think about it some more.  Just some general thinking.  Anybody have…

Mr. MacCartney:  Knowing, of course, that the Public Hearing is still open, and things could change.

Chairman Wright:  Exactly.

Mr. MacCartney:  But, to give the applicant some general feedback thus far.

Mr. Lynch;  Based on what I saw when I was there, I don’t see that, that being an issue.  The only thing is I didn’t see Mr. Ahmadi’s letter to see what he said, but other then what I saw I didn’t see it an issue.  

Mr. Keegan:  My only concern is that I think we need to address all of these issues in case Mr. Ahmadi comes back with an Article 78 or something where…he obviously has an interest.  

Chairman Wright;  I think that is what we are recommending too, Mr. Keegan.  That they just kind of address these things.  I’m just trying to narrow what’s the actual issue here.  It seems to be really about 3.1 feet.  Based on no other input from the public, but that’s what it sounds like at this point.  

Mr. Hager, does that sound about right to you?

Mr. MacCartney:  That’s the main reason why these issues have to be addressed.  We don’t know right now whether they are legitimate issues that need close attention or not.  We would like to have the applicant weigh in and tell us formerly what do they think so the Board can weigh it and understand and make an informed decision on the issues.  


Chairman Wright:  Thank you.  Any other feedback?

	(no response)

Chairman Wright:  If not, then we will continue the Public Hearing and…Mr. MacCartney do we need a motion for keep the Public Hearing open?

Mr. Lynch:  No.

Mr. MacCartney:  The Public Hearing remains open until you close it.

Chairman Wright:  Okay, we will maintain the…unless there is any other input let’s put this off until the next meeting.

	(no response)

Chairman Wright:  Thank you Mr. Leopold, Mr. Chaubard.  We appreciate your attendance.  

Mr. Leopold:  We appreciate the Board’s time.  Thank you all very much.  

Mr. Chaubard:  Thank you for your time.

Mr. Leopold:  Kathy, I will look for that tomorrow.

Ms. Kivlehan:  Yes, no problem.

Chairman Wright:  The next item on the agenda is the request of Vestco, LLC.

Request of Vestco, LLC – App. #21-05 

A variance from the requirements of Chapter 215, Article V, Section 15A-B-7 – Less than required side yard; required 10 feet, provided 4 feet (8 foot variance needed) at 11 Holt Drive, Stony Point, New York, for an amended site plan.  

Section:  20.04          Block:  11          Lot:  7            Zone:  LI-2

Is the applicant or representative present?  Good evening Mr. Zigler, how are you tonight?  So can you just bring us back up to speed again one more time we would appreciate it.

	David Zigler – Atzl, Nasher & Zigler
	234 North Main Street
	New City, New York

Mr. Zigler:  “I swear all testimony that I provide will be the truth.”

Chairman Wright:  Thank you.

Mr. Zigler:  We are talking about 11 Holt Drive, which is the 4th lot, but the 3rd building on your right as you leave 9W and go down to Shop Rite.  It is the 3rd building and it sits between the two (2) entrances opposite the two (2) entrances to Shop Rite.  

Back in the early 2000, Stony Point revised the Code in that area.  That used to be an “LI’ – Industrial Use, office, industrial, and they revised the Code so Shop Rite could move in there.  So they called it and revised it to an “LI-2” and the LI-2 allowed businesses to be in there.  The same type of businesses that you see along 9W in the BU Zone.  This applicant, Galanti, who deals with pianos had basically a warehouse there; which is the front portion of the building.  He went into Stony Point and put an expansion on.  At the time Shop Rite was not doing that good with those small units and so at the time it was discussed, and he decided to put three (3) commercial units in the front of the old building.  He built the building, and the building is doing fine and “lo and behold” a doctor took the two (2) units in the front and Galanti used the other unit as his office.  So recently the doctor come and asked to take over that last unit.  Then Galanti would move in the back with his pianos, and he is going to put an M.R.I. in there.


Looking at the site because of the really like two (2) different uses, the back of the site is more warehousing and now the fronts going to be commercial and especially because it is a doctor and therapy.  The thought was we should add some spaces.  So if you were out there, and you pulled into the driveway on your right are all perpendicular parking and the intention is to put parallel parking on the left and most likely that would be used by the people/employees that work there and that would allow the patients to pull right up front by the sidewalk.  Most patients who go to therapy are going there for a reason.  

So we thought that being next to the building, close to the building, on a sidewalk would be a safety factor.  That lay-out we went to Stony Point Planning Board and they didn’t find a problem with it, but it requires a variance.  The variance is so the parallel spaces end up being within the 10 foot of the side yard and that requires a variance.  

So from the first lay-out we went and adjusted it a little bit and reduced the variance, but we still need a variance from the 10 foot; we need the  variance for a 6 foot.  We are going to be 4 foot off the property line.  We have enough parking spaces.  We don’t need the parking spaces.  It’s just we are trying to separate the patients coming for therapy or going to the M.R.I. so that they have easy access to the sidewalk.  

The other point is we did get County letters and we addressed all the County questions; we made some revisions to the map and there is an area as you pull in…as you would see  if you were there, there is an area behind the original building where you can turn around.  But, one of the things the County asked for was landscaping and in-grading and moving the parking spaces solved that. 

So we do address all the County questions and as far as it being an impact to the neighborhood or to safety or to the facilities of the Town it is no impact.  It’s up and down that site.  Up and down that street there are many users that are within this distance and even closer to the property line some of them are crossing property lines in other areas so it’s not the sole request that nobody else has done.  It’s there, but the one thing is it is a substantial request because when you have a 10 foot yard, and you are requesting a 4 foot variance it is substantial.  So that is the one thing there is a yes to.  

But, overall if this receives the variance as requested we will go back to the Planning Board and they would endorse the plan because they think it is a good use and it’s definitely a solid tenant for the Town of Stony Point to be proud of because when they did change the zone on Holt Drive they were looking for that because Industrial Use in Stony Point is not a happening thing because of 9W.

I didn’t know if you wanted to see the map.  I could put the map up on the screen or if you’ve been out there you know what basically trying to explain to you and if you have any questions I would be glad to answer them.

Chairman Wright:  Let me do one piece of administrative work there.  Let me take a motion to open the Public Hearing.

Mr. MacCartney:  The motion should be “nunc pro tunc”; that means it’s a fancy way of saying now as though it was then.  It should have been open in the beginning.  I missed it.  I’ve been watching.  No member of the public joined the Zoom from the time that we started addressing this and no member of the public left.  Everybody that was on when Mr. Zigler started talking is still on now.  So the motion should be to open the Public Hearing retroactively to when Mr. Zigler started talking.

Chairman Wright:  Okay, thank you.  A motion to open the Public Hearing retroactive to Mr. Zigler’s opening comments.

***MOTION:  Mr. Lynch made a motion to open the Public Hearing retroactive to Mr. Zigler’s opening comments; seconded by Mr. Strieter.  All in favor; the motion was carried.

Chairman Wright:  Any questions from the Board?

Mr. MacCartney:  I have a quick question before we get to the Board if that’s okay.  Just procedurally Dave Zigler you mentioned that you had addressed the County Planning comments, I see that today…I assume that there must have been County Planning comments when you were at the Planning Board, because I do see a new County Planning letter dated April 13, 2021, addressed to the Zoning Board on the variance application.  Is that something that you had seen, Dave?

Mr. Zigler:  No, I didn’t see the Z.B.A. .  Mine was to the Planning Board and I had 11 comments.
Mr. MacCartney:  No, this had six (6).

Mr. Zigler;  Well we answered all 11 so I would believe we covered the six (6), but if you so choose and send that to me I’ll do a comment and response within the week.

M. MacCartney:  That’s great.  I will give you a quick overview of them because the first one, I wasn’t sure in an email from Kathy the first one is that the Town of Haverstraw and the Village of West Haverstraw should be provided the opportunity to review and comment.  

Did we send the Z.B.A. application out to them, Kathy?

Ms. Kivlehan:  The letter that we received it was faxed to me.  Dave, that is probably why you didn’t get it yet because it does say on the letter that they “cc” your office.

Mr. Zigler:  Okay.  No I didn’t see that.

Ms. Kivlehan:  That’s probably why you didn’t get it because I told them that tonight was our meeting date so that’s why they faxed it to me, and they probably didn’t send it to you.

I did send it to the Village of Haverstraw; I didn’t see that it said the Town of Haverstraw; so I sent them a G.M.L. yesterday.

Mr. MacCartney:  Okay.  When is the next meeting?  Is it 30 days or more?

Ms. Kivlehan:  May 20th will be the next meeting.  

Mr.  MacCartney:  Okay, so 30 days will of gone by, by the time of the next meeting.  So that is fine.  So that could be done and then Dave you can just take a look then…so we have to put it over and continue the hearing one way or the other for that purpose and then you will just take a look and address the other comments.  If you like, I have it in front of me I can tell you briefly what they are, or you can just take a look at it and address it in advance; what’s your preference?

Mr. Zigler:  Kathy, will send it to me and I’ll do a comment and response to the Board.

Mr. MacCartney:  I figured, okay.

Mr. Zigler:  I’ll also include the County Planning, too so you will have both – the Z.B.A. and the Planning Board.

Mr. MacCartney:  Okay.  Real quick I just see that the 2nd comment is that the proposed parking spaces are located along the previously approved fire lane.  A review must be completed by Rockland County Office of Fire and Emergency Services and the Town of Stony Point Fire Inspector or the Fire District.  Was that already done at the Planning Board, Dave?

Mr. Zigler:  Tom Larkin sits at the Planning Board and looked at it.  We moved the fire lane south.

Mr. MacCartney:  Okay, I just wanted to make sure that you are aware of that in case (inaudible)

Mr. Hager:  Dave?

Mr. Zigler:  Yes, the Town Engineer looked at that comment from the County today.  That gives us a choice; we can have the County Fire people or the local Fire people look at that, okay.  So the Fire Inspector looked at it today, with the Town Engineer and there is no problems with any fire apparatus access or anything there so that’s been addressed.

Mr. MacCartney;  Okay.  

Mr. Zigler:  I will get us something in writing on that in the next day or two.  

Mr. MacCartney:  Good just so we don’t have to make any more referrals.


Mr. Hager;  Also, the comment that the Engineer made is that although the County suggested that you guys shift that parking, which you did further from the property line, he is of the opposite opinion he feels that if you are going for a variance anyway it would be better off keeping it that closer like your original drawing which would give the cars that back out a few more feet; two (2) more feet,, and you would have less area for trying to maintain landscaping between the parking area and that fence.  

So that’s what his thoughts were.  I am sure he would repeat that at the Planning Board, but by then the variance may already be granted so that is something that can be considered as well.  Maybe the Board wants to grant a variance to add some variation to it.  If you do it at 4 foot, the Planning Board’s hands will be tied.  They will have to require 4 foot.

It sounds like the Town Engineer would prefer to see it about a foot from the fence, but that is something else to consider.

Mr. MacCartney: Is that something that the Planning Board; that difference, is that something the Planning Board has looked at already and they sort of settled on the 4 or is that something they didn’t look at yet?

Mr. Zigler:  They looked at it when I had 2.  When I got the comments from the County we slid it over 2 because the out-width should be 24; we had 26.  So that’s why we had the 2 foot to play with and I understand what John was saying, but also if somebody is on that door side of that fence he needs…atleast I need more than a foot to get out of a door of a car so I’m just you know.  That’s all I will say (laughter).

Mr. Hager:  Are they 9 foot wide spaces or 8 foot?

Mr. Zigler:  They are 8 foot wide parallel, yes.  So we could make them wider.

Mr. Hager:  The other consideration that John O’Rourke, Town Engineer, mentioned was the access drive he believed the building exceeds 30 feet in height and that it needs to be aerial  access – 26 feet is it.  Correct?

Mr. Zigler:  Yes.  

Mr. Hager:  So I guess we better make sure we have that measurement correct.  You had just mentioned 26 and reducing it to 24; maybe we can’t do that.

Mr. Zigler:  I would guess it be the 26 would be passed the 24.  After we get passed the perpendicular parking there it is wider than 26.  So the access to the building…

Mr. Hager:  I’m not sure how much length of the building you need that apparatus access on.

Mr. Zigler:  I’ll speak to Tom on that.  I’ll follow up.  Thank you.  

Mr. Hager:  Okay.  

Chairman Wright:  Any comments, questions from the Board members?

Mr. Lynch:  Not me.  Not at this time.  

Chairman Wright:  So we will…so there are some follow-up items so we will keep the Public Hearing open for the next meeting then.  

Mr. Zigler:  I have one question.  

Chairman Wright:  Certainly.

Mr. Zigler:  My request was for 4, but if the Z.B.A. could amend it to a 2 would we have to re-notify, cause that is more restriction then we are asking for?

Mr. MacCartney:  What level of specificity did we have in the Public Hearing notice?  Is it specified the 4?

Mr. Zigler:  4.  The 4.
Mr. MacCartney:  It is a good point because you are not reducing the variance sought; you are increasing the variance sought.

Mr. Zigler:  Yes.

Mr. MacCartney:  The answer is yes you probably would.  Technically, you would be open to the argument that it was wrong or insufficient notice.

Mr. Zigler:  I’ll talk to John O’Rourke, Town Engineer, also.

Mr. Hager:  I don’t think it’s 100% he has to have any.  He mentioned he preferred to see the parking closer to the fence; but I don’t think it is written in stone.

Mr. Zigler;  I’ll find out and give the Board an answer.

Mr. MacCartney:  Okay.

Chairman Wright:  Anything else Mr. Zigler?

Mr. Zigler:  No.

Chairman Wright:  So if there’s no other comments or questions from the Board, we will go ahead and proceed.

	(no response)

Mr. MacCartney:  We will  hold this over until the next meeting; right?

Chairman Wright:  You got it.

Mr. Zigler:  Thank you for your time.

Chairman Wright:  You are welcome.  Have a good night.  

Okay, so the next item on the agenda is the request of Gary Galanti.

Request of Gary Galanti - App. #21-03 

A variance from the requirements of Chapter 215, Article III, Section 9A – Insufficient front yard setback; required front yard: 25’ minimum, existing front yard: 25.1’, proposed front yard: 16.1’ side yard continues in compliance.  Variance required: 9’ front yard setback at 18 River Road, Stony Point, New York, for a front deck.

Section:  21.09          Block:  1          Lot:  17          Zone:  RW

Is the applicant or representative available?

	Gary Galanti
	
Chairman Wright:  This is a continuation of a Public Hearing.  So we will go ahead and…I think the one thing we had was there was a notification to Haverstraw or something…that was the outstanding item.  

Mr. Lynch:  Wasn’t that the reason why we left it open?

Ms. Kivlehan:  I haven’t received anything back from them yet; which we usually don’t.

Chairman Wright:  Okay.

Mr. Lynch:  So let’s move forward.  

Ms. Kivlehan:  No, we haven’t’ received anything back from the Town of Haverstraw.

Chairman Wright:  And you say that’s what normally happens.

Ms. Kivlehan:  Yes.  Very rarely.  I think maybe one time they have answered.

Chairman Wright:  And what exactly was the input we were seeking?

Ms. Kivlehan:  We needed to find out if they wanted to respond to the G.M.L.

Chairman Wright:  Is there a time limit when they need to respond by?

Ms. Kivlehan:  Within 30 days, right Dave?

Mr. MacCartney:  Yes, 30 days; typically.

Chairman Wright:  Have we passed that 30 days?

Ms. Kivlehan:  Hold on.  Let me see when I sent it.  I sent it March 19, 2021.

Chairman Wright:  So we are within the 30 days; unfortunately.  

Ms. Kivlehan:  We received stuff back from Rockland County Highway and Rockland County Planning.  That’s all we received it back from.  

Chairman Wright:  So let me do this then.  Let’s open it up.  Is there any other questions from the Board and then we will go back to this Haverstraw letter?

Mr. Keegan:  I’m just a little concerned about the diagram that we were given…is that adequate from a legal point of view?

Mr. MacCartney:  I mean on my notes, I feel like we talked about that last time, but I don’t recall.  The answer is what we have is we have the two (2) diagrams right – the one that is labeled existing and the one that is labeled new.

Chairman Wright:  This was received since the last meeting.  

Mr. MacCartney:  I want to make sure we are looking at the same thing you are looking at.  Are you talking about the plans showing the construction or are you talking about the two (2) photocopies of the old survey – one marked up and one not.

Mr. Keegan:  No, I think it’s the first one; I’m not sure.  (showing the diagram ) 

Chairman Wright:  Yes…as I understand it that’s been recently submitted.

Ms. Kivlehan:  That was submitted with the application.  Oh that was the amendment to it.

Chairman Wright:  Right, we had asked for that at  the last meeting.

Mr. MacCartney:  Right.  We had only the rough sketch and I see my own handwriting on the 9 feet 16.1 inches, and this is what came in since then.  Is that right?

Ms. Kivlehan:  Yes.

Chairman Wright:  That is my understanding.

Mr. MacCartney:  So maybe…I guess it’s a question.  So your question is, is it sufficient?  The answer is that’s really up to you.  Is it sufficient for you for your purposes to understand the dimensions and then it’s also a real question for John Hager?  If for example the Board were to grant the application are the papers submitted sufficient for you to understand and know that this is what’s been approved for Code Enforcement purposes on a going forward basis, or would you need something more specific from the applicant?

Mr. Keegan:  That’s fine.  I just wanted to make sure that it was adequate for the record.  Was it subject to criticism or anything else like that?  You know how I am about the record.


Mr. MacCartney:  No, for sure.  So the record should reflect that this and it will reflect that this diagram was submitted in the meantime and what it is it looks to me like it’s got…it’s a sketch of dimensions that show the existing 3 foot porch and it shows the dimensions coming off the back of the house along with the width of it being…

Chairman Wright:  It’s the front of the house.

Mr. MacCartney:  I’m sorry off the front of the house; I misspoke, with the width of the existing 3 foot porch being shown at 14 feet and to the right of that existing porch and steps and then the addition that he is adding is shown to be that same width; if I’m reading it right, and extending out an additional 9 feet from where the existing porch is.  Am I reading that right?

Chairman Wright:  That’s the way I read it.  Mr. Galanti, does that sound right?

Mr. Galanti:  Yes, that’s right.  Last time you asked me about the steps and the steps come off the porch 4 feet.  Basically I’m going passed the steps 5 feet.  

Chairman Wright:  Gotcha.

Mr. MacCartney:  That’s the right side.  The existing porch and steps and the steps where you said were staying here that’s all existing condition and it’s staying and if you are just showing the addition of the 14 foot long by 9 foot deep expansion of the porch.  Am I correct?

Mr. Galanti:  Right.  Basically what I am trying to say also, is that the steps are already out 4 feet.  So I’m really only going passed the envelope I am in right now 5 feet.  

Mr. MacCartney:  Right and then what’s not shown on here is what you had said verbally last time which is what the distance is now between the new porch, the expanded porch, and the front property line as…my notes show you said 16.1 feet.  Is that right?

Mr. Galanti:  Yes 16.1 feet to the property line and then there’s another roughly 23 feet to the street which is the County right-of-way.

Mr. MacCartney:  So making the total 39.1 or is the total 23.

Mr. Galanti:  No, the total would be around 23, 24 plus the 16.1.  When I measured it with a tape measure, it was about 41 feet to the street.  

Mr. MacCartney:  So John Hager, hypothetically were the Board to grant this is what you see is it sufficient for Code Enforcement purposes.  That’s the real main issue on going forward.

Mr. Hager:  I am comfortable with it, Dave.

Mr. MacCartney:  I think that answers the question unless any Board members have any more concerns?

Mr. Hager:  The applicant is representing this correctly.  It is quite wide the distance from the edge of pavement to the property line down there.  It is uncharacteristically wide so I don’t know if that is any kind of factor for the Zoning Board in these decisions, but its…we have to go to the property line, but the appearance down there would be that there is much more setback than is actually on the map because of that measurement that the applicant mentioned.  Was it 23 feet out to the street?  So that’s typically you would have 10 or 12 feet.

Mr. MacCartney:  Just in looking at the County Planning letter dated March 18 – question for you John Hager, comment #4 from the Department of Planning letter is what they do sometimes.  They ask that a full formal survey be made with a full bulk table and sometimes the Board requires that and sometimes it can override a condition like that.  Are you satisfied that without the bulk table in this case that there are no other variances required; everything else is fine I assume?  

Mr. Hager:  Yes, I am happy with it.  It’s a copy of a fairly recent map.  The applicant marked it up himself.  He didn’t’ pay a professional to mark the drawing up.  I am comfortable with it.  It’s an unroofed deck.  It’s a pretty minor job.  I don’t see a need to have him go and get this redrawn and certified so I would think that the Board can override that comment from the County.

Mr. MacCartney:  Okay.

Chairman Wright:  Any other questions from the Board?

	(no response)

Chairman Wright:  Alright if there are no other questions from the Board; any other questions from the Public?  Anybody from the Public have any input?

	(no response)

Chairman Wright:  If there is no other questions from the Board or from the public, then I will take a motion to close the Public Hearing unless there is any other objections?

Mr. MacCartney:  The only issue would be the Haverstraw thing.  What I might suggest to get through that, is leave the Public Hearing open, but perhaps proceed as though you are not going to get comments from Haverstraw and technically you can close it next time, but in the meantime you can give me some feel one way or another some feedback.  I could probably come next time and provide you with a resolution in advance so that we don’t waste another month.

Chairman Wright:  I guess that’s a good way to proceed.  Anybody from the Board…generally anybody have any reservations about approving this or are you kind of thinking…

Mr. Lynch:  No, we were down there as a group, too.  We all looked at it together.

Chairman Wright:  Alright, so…unless there is any other feedback I think Mr. MacCartney we are generally in favor of this thing so you can go ahead and word it that way.  

Mr. MacCartney:  Okay, and then Kathy if in the meantime you get any comments at all from Haverstraw get that out to me right away and if anything is of any real substance in there we can address it at the next meeting.

Ms. Kivlehan:  Okay.  When would the 30 days be?  Because I mailed it out on March 19, 2021.  

Chairman Wright:  It would probably be the 20th.

Mr. MacCartney:  That’s okay.  Call it the 19th; give or take a  day.  Otherwise we will leave it open so whenever it comes in…

Ms. Kivlehan:  Okay, if I don’t hear from them by the 19th then I will let you know.  I will let you know either way on the 20th whether or not I received anything.

Mr. MacCartney:  Okay, that is fine.  But, even if I draft and it comes in afterwards the Board can still consider it because the hearing is open.  Let me know one way or another if or when anything does come in.  

Ms. Kivlehan:  Okay, no problem.  Thank you.

Chairman Wright:  With that we will keep the Public Hearing open, Mr. Galanti and hopefully at the next meet we will have a resolution and probably a decision at that point pending any kind of feedback from Haverstraw.

Mr. Galanti:  Okay, thank you very much for your time.

Chairman Wright:  Yes, thank you very much.  Appreciate it.  Have a good night.


Chairman Wright:  Okay, onto the next item and that is the request of Stony Point Ambulance.

Request of Stony Point Ambulance – App. #21-01 

A variance from the requirements of Chapter 215, Article V, Section 12-F – No professional office space permitted in R1 Zone at 6 Lee Avenue, Stony Point, New York, for office space.

Section:  15.19          Block:  4          Lot:  62          Zone:  R1
This is a continued Public Hearing.  Is the applicant or representative present?  Can you just identify yourself?

	Scott Ugell – Attorney for the Stony Point Ambulance Corps.
	
Mr. MacCartney:  Mr. Ugell can I just interrupt you for one second?  Just procedurally, had this hearing been opened already.

Ms. Kivlehan:  Yes.

Mr. Ugell:  I believe so, yes.

Mr. MacCartney:  Sorry go ahead.  I apologize for interrupting.

Ms. Kivlehan:  It was opened up by Mr. Lynch and seconded by Mr. Strieter to open up the Public Hearing.

Mr. MacCartney:  Very good.  Go ahead, I am sorry.

Mr. Ugell:  I am the attorney for the Stony Point Ambulance Corps.  We are here tonight seeking a use variance of this building.  I don’t want to spend a lot of time on the history of the building because I don’t think I want to waste all of your valuable time.  Let’s suffice to say the history of this building very briefly is that this was the original building for the Stony Point Ambulance Corps. going back I think 50 or 60 years or so and then sometime thereafter because of the need Stony Point Ambulance Corps. built a new building, as many of you know, and they vacated this building.  

The Stony Point Ambulance Corps. is having financial issues.  I think you all know that.  They have a massive loan that is secured by both buildings- the one that is tonight’s application and the one that was built for them some years ago.  

The purpose of this process honestly was to sell this building and paydown the enormous debt that S.P.A.C. has to what was once Sterling Bank, but you should also know that Sterling recently sold this loan to a hedge fund; I got the letter a few days ago.  Mainly probably because it’s a distress loan.  So my clients haven’t been able to afford to cover their application under the mortgage and this was one way we thought that we would be able to sell this building, paydown some of the debt and help keep Stony Point Ambulance Corps. solvent so they could help protect the lives of the citizens that they protect…that they serve.  

So I know that the Board, I believe the Board, went to the site recently and did an on-site inspection and were able to get an idea as to what the building looks like and how the building was built primarily for the purpose of an ambulance corps. which is a very unique design, for obvious reasons, and it was built in a residential neighborhood.  

So the use variance that we are proposing is to allow us to sell this to a buyer who would buy it in an ordinary course and would use it for office space and I am prepared to demonstrate tonight to the Board that the use variance, the criteria that is necessary to grant such a use variance, I will be presented this evening to meet your criteria.  

I am going to tell you what I am going to present to you tonight, as my introduction, and then I will get to it by the evidence that I am presenting; mainly in the form of an expert witness that I’ll get to in a few moments.  


So first and foremost, the first criteria for a use variance is we have to prove unnecessary hardship.  We then have to prove that the applicant cannot realize a reasonable return and that the lack of a return is substantial.  That the alleged hardship relating to the property in question is unique and doesn’t apply to a substantial portion of the district or the neighborhood and that the requested use variance; if granted, will not alter the essential character of the neighborhood and that the alleged hardship has not been self-created.  

So with that, I would like to ask the Board if they would allow my witness to be sworn.  Would you like me to do that or do one of you prefer to do that?

Chairman Wright:  You can just…if he could just identify himself and his address and that the testimony he is about to give will be truthful.  He can make that statement.

	James V. Damiani
	2 Alton Court
	New City, New York

Mr. Damiani:  “The testimony that I am about to give is truthful.”

Chairman Wright:  Thank you sir.

Mr. Ugell:  May I begin.

Chairman Wright:  Yes, you may.  Thank you.  

Mr. Ugell:  Okay Mr. Damiani, tell me sir are you employed?

Mr. Damiani:  Yes, I am a full-time real estate broker.  

Mr. Ugell;  And where do you work sir?

Mr. Damiani:  I work for Rand Commercial.

Mr. Ugell:  And how many years have you been a real estate broker, sir?

Mr. Damiani:  I’ve been a real estate broker for over 40 years.

Mr. Ugell:  And have you…where have you focused most of your real estate interests during those 40 years?

Mr. Damiani:  Well during those 40 years I’ve worked selling residential and commercial real estate.  I also have given expert testimony in courts in Rockland County and for attorneys and accountants on the State matters, matrimonial and so forth and also I am the past President of the Rockland County Board of Realtors.  I’ve been a Hearing Officer for real estate disputes and about real estate usage and real estate valuation.  

Mr. Ugell:  Mr. Damiani you mentioned that in your 40 years has most of your focus been in Rockland County?

Mr. Damiani:  Yes, primarily yes.

Mr. Ugell:  Okay you said that you’ve been characterized in courts by judges as an expert?

Mr. Damiani:  Yes.

Mr. Ugell:  And do you recall some of the judges who you’ve testified in their court as an expert?

Mr. Damiani:  Yes – Robert Berliner, Honorable Paul  Marks, Thomas Zugibe, Honorable Kevin Russo, Rolf Thorsen, and Thomas Walsh.

Mr. Ugell:  And these are cases where you were called as an expert witness on the issue of real estate?

Mr. Damiani:  Yes.

Mr. Ugell:  So now as part of your real estate license, over the years have you had the occasion to help create, what is called C.M.A.’s comparative market analysis or brokerage price opinions.

Mr. Damiani:  Yes, many times.

Mr. Ugell:  Did you have an opportunity to do some research on the application before this Board tonight?

Mr. Damiani:  Yes, I have.

Mr. Ugell:  And were you able to go to the site itself?

Mr. Damiani:  Yes, I visited the site about two (2) or three (3) weeks ago.  

Mr. Ugell  Okay.  Now when you look at the property in its current condition, and try to determine what if anything can be done with it so that an owner would be able to have some reasonable return, did you determine any opinion about this particular property for this application tonight?

Mr. Damiani:  Yes.  Well it’s a commercial building.  It’s on the borderline of a residential area next to the library there.  But, it’s very definitely a building that was built with commercial or institutional use in mind.

Mr. Ugell:  Okay and now could you tell the Board if you believe that any reasonable return can be had on the building in its current…if it was not to be allowed to be used in its current condition?

Mr. Damiani:  Well in…yes.  If in real estate we have a concept called “highest and best use” and that is the best economic use for a particular property and the best return for this…economic return for this property would be to be used as a commercial property.

Mr. Ugell:  Okay, but now stirring away from the highest and best use just given its current condition and that it is zoned in a residential area, how would you be able to determine valuation and hardship if any with regard to that?

Mr. Damiani:  Well if you are asking me could it be used as it is zoned; as a residential property, the building cost of adapting this building to residential use would be prohibited.  The design of the building is for a commercial purpose.  So you are talking about hundreds of thousands of dollars to make a very awkward kind of conversion, or converting it to a very awkward kind of residential use the way the building is placed on the property is all the way back to maximize the parking and the access…the whole lot is paved with macadam.  It’s just…to convert this into a residence it’s all wrong.  It’s just all wrong.  With a residence it is almost a 3,800 square foot building or thereabouts.  When you build a house you want the land to…the house towards the front of the property so that it has a nice backyard.  This is just the opposite.  It’s flipped – the building is in the back of the property with all of the parking towards the front and one side; the side between the library and the ambulance corps. building.  So it just would really not make a very good conversion to a residential property and it would be prohibitively expensive.  It would certainly…and when I say prohibitively I mean the buildings worth about $300,000.00 to spend a couple of hundred thousand dollars to convert it to a residential building there is very little residual value in that kind of a conversion.

Mr. Ugell:  How about the alternative if the building is not suited for residential or any of the property that is permitted or any of the uses that are familiar in the R-1 Zone.  Would you suggest tearing it down?

Mr. Damiani:  Well again, tearing it down would be very expensive.  Probably upwards of $50,000.00 to demolish it and to haul away all the debris that would the result from the demolition and then you would have a lot that was worth $150,000.00 tops and because the prevailing value in the area is between $300,000 and $400,000.00.  You are not going to build a mansion in this neighborhood.  You are going build an average kind of house.  So you have to have an average kind of lot price and it’s a small lot anyway; its only about 8,000 square foot and 9,000 square foot lot.  So you are talking about the result would be a tremendous loss in value and the owner would suffer a tremendous economic harm.

Mr. Ugell:  So if we tore the building down it would cost us about $50,000.00 to do all that.  You are left with a building lot you are saying is worth about $100/150,000.00.

Mr. Damiani:  Perhaps.  Yes about $150,000.00.

Mr. Ugell:  Okay, then if you were going to build that proverbial about 2,000 square house residential size and you say it would cost about $150.00 a square foot on an average to build a house.

Mr. Damiani:  Atleast.  These days it might be more because building supplies have gone up quite a bit in value…in cost, excuse me, in recent months.  

Mr. Ugell:  I am not great in math, but if I $150.00 a square by 2,000 square feet; is that $350,000.00?

Mr. Damiani:  That’s about $300,000.00 or more and plus the value of the lot $150,000.00.  You would be spending close to half a million dollars to build a house that was worth about half a million dollars, but there is no profit there.  There is no room for profit.

Mr. Ugell:  So in that area there, there is no rate of reasonable profit or return in that scenario.  Right?

Mr. Damiani:  No.  

Mr. Ugell:  So this is not even a matter of getting a reasonable return.  Is it your testimony that, infact, this property only represents object failure that it would only represent loss?

Mr. Damiani:  It would be an abject loss.

Mr. Ugell:  There is no upside value or possibility on this site the way it sits now?

Mr. Damiani:  Well only…

Mr. Ugell:  Other than an office.

Mr. Damiani:  Other than the way it’s designed to be used which is for a commercial usage.  So it does have value as a commercial property.  

Mr. Ugell:  Now we went through the list on the R-1 Zone are there any uses in that zone that you can see this building being able to be used for where any return could be anticipated?

Mr. Damiani:  No.

Mr. Ugell:  The purchase price that the buyer is paying for this property would you say that is a fair and reasonable price?

Mr. Damiani:  Yes, I think it’s a fair and reasonable price.  Because even for his usage he is going have to fit up the property to alter it and adapt it to his needs.  

Mr. Ugell:  Is there any other scenario that you could think of from a real estate point of view using the existing Stony Point Code where a person can anticipate any reasonable return from this property other than an existing commercial use?

Mr. Damiani:  I don’t see another…better scenario than the one you have.  Your fortunate to have found someone who wants a commercial property in that particular location and wants to convert it to office use.  It is a fairly benign use for that location.

Mr. Ugell:  Would you say that this particular property and circumstance is rather unique?

Mr. Damiani:  Oh, it is absolutely.  Its total unique.

Mr. Ugell:  Have you ever seen a situation quite like this where you have a property that’s built like that, in a neighborhood like that?

Mr. Damiani:  No.  I mean maybe there might be an incidence of it somewhere, but I haven’t encountered it in my experience.

Mr. Ugell:  Mr. Damiani, is your testimony that if the use variance was granted that it wouldn’t alter the essential character of the neighborhood?

Mr. Damiani:  No, it’s the character of the neighborhood has already been established.  The buildings have all been there for many, many years.  This is probably a 50 or 60 year old building and the one next to it is probably also and then many of the houses in the neighborhood have been there for maybe 100 years or more.  They are vintage colonials, Victorians and so forth.

Mr. Ugell:  Mr. Damiani do you think that the petitioner in any way has created this hardship…has the hardship been self-created by the applicant?

Mr. Damiani:  I don’t see it that way.  Obviously, they outgrew that facility and needed a better facility to better serve the community and the usefulness to them of that particular building was at an end.
Mr. Ugell:  Understood.  I think Mr. Damiani, you have answered most of my important questions and you have hit the criteria that is out-layed in the Code. 

Would any of the Board members be interested in asking Mr. Damiani any questions?

Chairman Wright:  Anybody from the Board have any questions?  

	(no response)

Chairman Wright:  If not, I have a couple of them.  Maybe it’s just that I don’t see it, but what was the…you have somebody interested in the property and what was their evaluation of the property?  What are the willing to put down for it?

Mr. Ugell:  Say again, sir.  Say again.

Chairman Wright:  It sounds like there is somebody who is interested in the property?

Mr. Ugell:  Like I mentioned when I first started, this application is being bought by Stony Point Ambulance Corps. for permission to get this use variance because we are in contract to sell the property, but the contract is subject to getting a use variance to allow them to continue using the building as it was built for office.  That’s what this is all about.

Chairman Wright:  And all I’m asking is what is the offer on the property…on the building?

Mr. Ugell:  The purchase price?  

Chairman Wright and Mr. Lynch:  Yes.

Mr. Ugell:  I think it is $325,000.00; right.

Mr. Damiani:  About $300,000.00.

Mr. Ugell:  $322,000.00, yes.

Chairman Wright:  And what is the existing outstanding debt on the property; if any?

Mr. Ugell:  $3 million 100 thousand, maybe.

Chairman Wright:  On that particular property?

Mr. Ugell:  Let me explain.  When Sterling gave the loan to S.T.A.C. (Stony Point Ambulance Corps.) they crossed collateralized the old building and the new building.  So that’s why when we…if your tribunal is so wonderful to the Stony Point Ambulance Corps. where they grant this use variance, every dime of this money is going to pay off their loan.  They’re not really even getting any of the money.  They are just trying to pay down their obligation.  They are in such financial straits right now sir that whatever we can do to paydown their debt and help get them financially sound is what we need to do.  

So the last question I asked Mr. Damiani about is this self-inflicted that is one of the criteria in the statute, I want to make it clear that it’s not.  These are people who are protecting our neighborhood/neighbors by being an ambulance corps.  They outgrew their facility.  


I am going to say something, and I hope it is not taken the wrong way, they were encouraged to leave that building by the Town.  Infact, I wasn’t there when it happened, but when I did some research I learned from talking to the people at Sterling that the Town helped convince Sterling to give them this “RIDICULOUS LOAN” to buy this new property and build this new building.  

So part of what we are doing tonight isn’t really just a real estate oriented application its part of the underlying effort we are making, but to be able to sell this building to a third party it would then be paying real estate taxes and contributing to their community, but also allow us to paydown S.T.A.C.’s massive debt and help get them back on the stable environment so they can do what they are good at doing; which is help protecting people and saving lives and saving our community.

Chairman Wright:  And I think I can speak for the Board and say we all think very much of our ambulance corps. and we are deeply grateful for all their good work that they do, and I think we want to find…do our best due-diligence on this one to see what we can do for them.  

So we appreciate all the work that they do.  They’ve carried me there atleast one (1) time to the hospital, so I have a great deal of feeling for the work that they do and appreciation.  So I get all that.  They are very good.

What we are just looking to do here is make sure that we understand to the end.  

So one of the things that I know I am dealing with here is that; and the testimony I thought was very good testimony Mr. Damiani so is there a way that you…can somebody put this in dollars and cents form on a paper.  I think you have it there, but is there a way somebody can put it in a document and say here is the expected price, here is the expected cost and show us, and I think you’ve demonstrated that it’s probably the case, dollars, and cents that you can’t get in the R-1 and then the potential value on the sale.  Just something so we can have some documentation for it.  Like I say, I think you’ve expressed in our testimony; atleast to my opinion, that you have a compelling case there, but it would be easier if we had it in some kind of a document form.

Mr. Ugell:  No, problem sir.  Here’s my suggestion.  Can I prepare over the next few days; maybe early next week, an affidavit from Mr. Damiani and he will delineate more of the dollars and cents aspect of what you are asking to show what we talked about and how it relates to the hardship.  Because really when you ask me…forgive me when you asked an applicant that information what you are really saying is could you just demonstrate the actual hardship component and that’s really what the statute requires of us.  So I will be happy to show that in an affidavit.  I will prepare for Mr. Damiani which will really just be a reiteration, a supplementation of what he testified to, but with more specificity as to dollars and cents.  No problem.  

Chairman Wright:  Yes, that sounds fair.

Mr. Ugell:  Thank you.

Chairman Wright;  Any other questions from the Board?

Mr. Lynch:  I have a question about if we go ahead and move forward on this use variance change on it to allow the sale of this building to go through on this…so we change the variance now to say that now even though the plans that are presented are just putting in cubicles and stuff like that and if I’m looking at the Town letter properly they are also concerned about the parking.  

How many cubicles for “office use” is going to be input there?  You are not going…it’s a large enough building where you could put multiple offices and buildings in there and if they use it as a conference room type and put in conferences you could have over 20 or 30 people into that building; upstairs and downstairs for the size of the building.  So parking becomes a huge concern there and then he is going to have to come to us again for another variance to alleviate his hardship there.

Mr. Ugell:  So that is a great question, and I am glad to be able to respond.  This is going to be a single use operator who is working…he has like an office/cleaning business.  No chemicals; nothing like that, but that is going to be his base of operation.  So it’s going to be one (1) man, one (1) person going to work there; working out of that building…having one (1) or two (2) employees.  That is all he really needs.  It will very few people going back and forth.  In fact when I was preparing and asking Mr. Damiani for some opinions about the property, he told me that he thinks there will be less people at this property as the use that you have intended versus if you had a family living there with people going back and forth every single day and on weekends and kids.  He’s not even going to be there most of the time.  What he does he goes to office buildings and does estimates for office cleaning and then subsidizes; for lack of a better word, finds independent contractors – people who physically do the cleaning.  The cleaners never come to his office.  The materials are never at his office.  It’s just him and his computer, a staff member to help him organize his work.  

The footprint honestly ladies and gentlemen will be the minimist and Mr. Damiani told me that he thought there would be less traffic and activity with that use as the sole operator user then if an entire family was there.  And he will say that to you now if you want to hear it directly from him.  I am just telling you what he told me.

Mr. Lynch;  So he is there now there you are saying or…

Mr. Ugell:  Mr. Damiani.

Mr. Lynch:  Mr. Damiani.  So you are buying the building?

Mr. Ugell:  No, no he is the expert.

Mr. Lynch:  Right, he is the expert, but that is what I was asking about.  This is the first time I am hearing that it is a cleaning business moving into it.  

Mr. Ugell:  It’s a cleaning business…it is going to be their offices for cleaning.

Mr. Lynch:  Well that’s what I am inquiring about.  If there was offices…I work in an office where there is cubicles and I know how quick it is to put in there; based on your plans it is easily to change the interior on that.  

Mr. Ugell:  It’s a single occupant owner property.  There’s not going to be multiple people.  It’s one (1) guy, one (1) family owned business, one (1) young man and that’s it.

Mr. Lynch:  Okay.  Alright.

Mr. Hager:  Can I weigh in for a second?

Chairman Wright:  Sure.

Mr. Hager:  Correct me if I am wrong, but I believe if there is a favorable decision made here and the use is allowed the project still needs to go for a Planning Board site plan review and that’s where a lot of these parking concerns and the number of occupants and the hours of operation and that kind of stuff would be presented and discussed before they can file that site plan.

Mr. Ugell:  Okay.

Mr. MacCartney:  I was going to ask you that same question, John.  I’ve not looked at this.  Is this the type of use when you are converting here that he would definitely be required to apply for a site plan approval?

Mr. Hager:  Yes.

Mr. MacCartney:  Okay.

Mr. Hager:  So before we could issue a building permit to do any of the renovations work or conversion of this space it would have to be referred to the Planning Board for the site plan review.  The Planning Board wouldn’t be able to authorize the site plan review without this Zoning Board giving this variance.

Mr. MacCartney:  Mr. Ugell you agree with that.  You take any issue with that?

Mr. Ugell:  No sir.  I am happy to comply with whatever procedure your Town expects of us.  No problem at all.


Mr. MacCartney:  Okay, great because the reason that comes to mind among others is #2 on the County Planning letter where they are talking about the requirement for a site plan with all sorts of information.  If everything that the County Planning is asking for in #2 is going to be reviewed and considered as a matter of course at a subsequent site plan application process before the Planning Board, I think that can satisfy that…that comment can be overridden on the ground that it will be done and/or if the Board happens to be inclined to grant the application it could grant it on the condition of and expressly conditioned upon review and approval by the Planning Board.  

Mr. Ugell:  Very well sir.  I understand.

Chairman Wright:  I just want to make sure that I have a diagram that was attached to the letter, I think it was dated January 6, 2021, and it shows kind of the second floor proposed office space.  Does it look similar to this?  You can see that?

Mr. Ugell:  I have that attached to the…

Chairman Wright:  And that’s still the latest proposed planning for this then?

Mr. Ugell:  Yes, sir.

Chairman Wright:  Yes.

Mr. Lynch:  It’s more than one (1) office.

Chairman Wright:  Yes, there a few of them there.

Any questions from anybody else on the Board?

	(no response)

Chairman Wright:  Any questions from anybody in the public?  Can you identify yourself with your name and address?

	Alan Horowitz
	6 Georgian Drive
	Stony Point, New York

Chairman Wright   Please affirm that any testimony you may give will be truthful.

Mr. Horowitz:  Yes, everything I say will be truthful.  

Chairman Wright:  Okay, thank you.

Mr. Horowitz:  I just wanted to say that the building was built in 1946.  So it is about 75 years old.  I know it was said like 50 years old; but it is 75 years old.

Chairman Wright:  It aged well.

Mr. Horowitz:  Yes.  

Chairman Wright:  Alright, Mr. MacCartney you have any last items you might think we might just want to turn around or?

Mr. MacCartney:  No, I don’t think I do.  

Chairman Wright:  Think you hit all the four (4) key items so I think once we can get a representation of the information that kind of quantifies the dollars and cents item I think I will be satisfied.  

I think in that case we will continue to keep the Public Hearing open until we get that information.


Mr. Ugell and Mr. Lynch:  Yes.

Chairman Wright:  Alright, so any other input from anybody?

	(no response)

Chairman Wright:  With that they we will go ahead and continue the Public Hearing open.  Thank you Mr. Damiani, thank you Mr. Ugell.  We appreciate your input.

Mr. Ugell::  Thank you very much gentlemen.  

Chairman Wright:  We look forward to that documentation and we will put that on for our next meeting.

Mr. Ugell:  Thank you.  When is the next meeting?

Chairman Wright:  Kathy, when is the next meeting?

Ms. Kivlehan:  May 20, 2021.

Mr. Ugell;  We will have it to you next week.  Thank you so much for your time everyone.  I really appreciate it.

Chairman Wright:  You are very welcome.  Thank you.

Okay, is there anything else we want to bring up at this meeting before I request an adjournment?  

	(no response)

Chairman Wright:  If not, I will take a motion to adjourn.

***MOTION:  Mr. Keegan made a motion to adjourn the meeting of April 15, 2021; seconded by Mr. Strieter.  All in favor; the motion was carried.

						Respectfully submitted,


						Kathleen Kivlehan
						Secretary
						Zoning Board of Appeals
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